
 

 
 

  

Rittman City Council Met in 

A Regular Meeting 

on Monday, January 10, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Members Present: Rick Hanlon, Bill Workman, Glen Russell, Richard Lapehn  

       and Darrell Carey 
Members Absent:  Lynn Beaumont 
Presiding:        Mayor William Robertson 
 

Invocation was given by Sister Joan Rader, P.O. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Approval of Minutes – December 6, 2010 
Workman so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 
Workshop- None  

 
Citizens Forum - None 

    
Old Business 

 
a. Discussion of a Property Maintenance Code 
Workman inquired as to where they stood with the Property Maintenance Code.  
Hanlon advised he spoke with the fire chief and he (Sweigert) is working on his portion of 

the code and hopefully the City Manager was working on the administration section as well.  
 Workman advised he felt they needed to get going on it, as he believed it was badly needed. 
 
New Business 

 
Lynn Beaumont arrived at 7:04 p.m. 

 
a. Ord. No. 7631 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne 

and Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Creating Chapter 749, Indoor Firing Ranges of the 

Codified Ordinances of the City of Rittman and Declaring an Emergency. First Reading. Ord. 
No. 7631 was read on first reading. 

Russell inquired as to the location of (an indoor firing range). 
Boggs advised one interested party was underneath the gun & ammo store (on the west side 

of S. Main St.). 
Russell inquired if there was a license fee. 
Boggs advised it written in the ordinance (attachment) that there was a $100 license fee. He 

advised his concern with any location was that they have an adequate ventilation system. Boggs 
advised EPA would issue the ventilation permit, but he felt this ordinance reinforces that they have 
to have an EPA permit. 

Russell inquired as to the hours of operation of such a range, if it would only be during 
daytime hours. 

Boggs advised it would be a business and would regulate itself. He advised he spoke with 
the property owner since the space was being rented and he believed the owner would regulate the 
hours as well since there were rental apartments on the third floor. Boggs advised it would need to 
be well insulated as well regulated on hours of operation if there would be any noise at all. He 
advised usually those type of businesses have a lot of insulation and they would not hear much at 
all from the outside or the interior floor. 

Workman inquired if the police department didn’t already have such a place. 
Police Chief Burg advised no not an indoor firing range, but they had an outdoor firing 

range. 
Workman inquired if it was expensive to build an indoor firing range. 
Boggs advised very. He advised he believed the backstop was fairly reasonable, but the 

ventilation system was what cost a lot of money. 
Workman advised Wooster and Barberton both were getting these (indoor firing ranges). 
Workman moved to place on second, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried.  

 



City Manager’s Remarks 
 City Manager Larry Boggs advised he was requesting a quick executive session at the end 
of the meeting for the purpose of discussing the sale of property. He advised he would request they 
invite the Mayor, the Law Director, the Finance Director and the City Manager. 
 Boggs congratulated the Finance Department of Barb (Rissland) and Trudy (Arnold) for 
receiving the excellence award from the State of Ohio. He advised it was the second year in a row 
they have received that award and it was a credit to that department. 
 Boggs advised he sent a letter out to the Council Members regarding the healthcare policy 
as previously the City Manager and the Finance Director were given permission to act on a 
healthcare proposal if it was favorable. He advised they received some excellent quotes and were 
able to change the renewal schedule from a June-June to a Jan.-Jan., which he felt makes a big 
difference for the employees with their deductible accounts. Boggs advised they were able to save 
some money from the previous policy. He advised they learned through the agent that several of the 
township trustees have included themselves as being able to participate in their group policy. Boggs 
advised he felt City Council didn’t have many benefits for the job they do and this wouldn’t be 
costing the city or the taxpayers or the employees any money, but if a Council Member wished to 
be a part of the group they would pay 100% of the premium if they were in need of healthcare. He 
advised he felt it was a good idea for now and future Council’s and he suggested a motion be made 
to that effect if they were in agreement. 
 Boggs advised the Finance Director and he were talking after the last meeting where 
Council had approved a 2% cost of living increases for their positions. He advised they appreciated 
the confidence in their abilities and they felt good over the financial condition for which they have 
control. Boggs advised they were still very concerned especially with what the state would be doing 
to the cities with grants and local government funds may start to disappear and put the city in a 
financial bind. He advised they wanted to take the lead and set the example by cutting the increase 
in half and only accept 1% and they have already directed the payroll department to do so. Boggs 
advised he hoped (Council) was not offended by this decision, but with negotiations with the unions 
later in 2011 they wanted to set the example. He advised they appreciated Council’s willingness to 
do that (give 2% increase) and he hoped they understood their decision. 
   

Finance Director’s Remarks  
 Finance Director Barbara Rissland advised they were currently working on closing the year 
and they should have W-2’s out this week and financial statements should follow shortly thereafter. 
She advised she would just like to echo Larry’s comments in that they appreciated the offer, but felt 
it made good sense to give part of it back. 

 

Council Remarks 
 Council Member Bill Workman thanked Barb (Rissland) for the job she has done and for 
the award. He thanked everyone for coming out in the cold weather. 
 Council Member Rick Hanlon thanked everyone for coming. He thanked the street 
department for patching some chuckholes during the short warm up and hopefully they would be 
able to do a little preventative maintenance before they (roads) get worse. Hanlon advised he was 
glad they get all the LED lighting installed and they look good and hopefully we would recognize 
some cost savings on the electric bill. 
 Council Member Glen Russell advised he felt the street department has done a swell job 
with the ice and snow removal. He advised he would like to discuss with Council that when they 
clean the snow routes (main thoroughfares) and then go to the residential (secondary) streets and 
once they have plowed (all areas) at least one time he inquired if they double back and push the 
snow (further back) over to the sidewalk on each street or do they just make one path through and 
then they quit. Russell advised the reason he was asking was off Rufener Street he had some calls 
about Joshua Drive as they (city snowplow crew) had made one path through and then it all packed 
down and some of those homes have a steep incline trying to get in (and out of) their driveways. He 
advised he would like to know the procedures. 
 Boggs advised he couldn’t say they definitely plow through all the streets as he was 
assuming it was more than one. He advised since he has been City Manager he has felt that has 
been the most problematic area (Sunset Hills Farm Subdivision) he dubbed the “Bible Belt”. Boggs 
advised after the last snowfall there were some complaints, but he found it hard to believe the one 
person who was complaining said that we (city crew) only went through his street once and we 
didn’t do it with a heavy enough plow. He advised what he does believe was that the wind blows 
pretty hard up on the hill (northwest end of the city) making that a problematic area and in his mind 
that was somewhat different than other side streets. Boggs advised their policy was they only salt 
the main thoroughfares (and hills and curves). He advised they do not salt the side streets in general 
except maybe the intersections to allow for stopping, but in general they don’t salt. Boggs advised 
if they salted all the side streets they (the city) would be spending 2-3 times their normal salt budget 
and he didn’t think they could afford that (added expense). He advised he agreed in that area there 
were problems with ice build-up due to the wind blowing and drifting and he felt they probably 



needed to treat that (area) a little bit different. Boggs advised after that complaint Dave (Service 
Director) and he discussed it and they salted up there (Joshua Dr.) to try to break up that ice. 
 Russell advised he followed up on that (complaint), but he didn’t know if it was last winter 
or before that, but he remembers that normally they said they take a big truck and go through one 
street through and then once they got all the streets opened up then they usually would have a small 
truck to push it back and that prevent a lot of the ice and so forth. 
 Boggs advised he was just guessing that was how it was done because he really didn’t 
know. 
 Russell advised over in the high school area as well where the school kids were walking he 
felt and it was discussed last year that they would try to keep the sidewalk (clear) by the tennis 
courts and some of those streets where the “snow buses” have to come through. He advised he felt 
they needed to pay a little more attention on those streets. Russell thanked everyone for coming and 
invited all to come back. 
 Council Member Richard Lapehn had no remarks. 

Council Member Darrell Carey thanked everyone for coming. He advised he understood 
the Apostolic Home was up and running with their sewer. 

Boggs advised he knew they were tapped in and he believed they were turned on. 
Carey advised he spoke with someone at The Home who said they were happy it was up 

and running. He advised by the recreation center and the high school on Saurer St. early in the 
morning or late in the evening it was really dark and he would like to see the city or the school or a 
combination of the two install a street lamp in that area. 

Boggs advised he thought he sent an email to Mr. Ullman, as he believed the school 
controls the lights that (Carey) were talking about and he believed they were on a timer. 

Carey advised there was not even a light at this location. He advised it was very dark and 
he almost hit someone going to the sidewalk (that was cleaned off by the way) coming out of there 
one morning, but he could barely see him because it was only 6:00 and there is no light. 

Russell advised he believed the one light in the parking lot was removed during 
construction (of the new high school). 

Carey advised it was really dark. 
Boggs indicated he would look into whether that light was scheduled to go back up, but he 

would speak with Mr. Ullman to see if they couldn’t get something done. 
Carey advised there was one (street light) closer to the high school (on Saurer) and then one 

way at the end and he felt that was too far between (lamp posts). 
 Council Member Lynn Beaumont thanked Larry and Barb (Rissland) for their 
considerations on the pay raises. He congratulated (Rissland) on the (financial reporting) award. 
Beaumont advised he agreed with (Carey) as he was up there every morning at 5:30 and it was 
really dark. He advised if there were kids walking to school and it was dark and they have dark 
clothing on then you simply could not see them. Beaumont advised he didn’t know what the 
ultimate plan was when the school gets done, but it really was dark right there and he didn’t know if 
that was our (city) responsibility. He advised he didn’t know what the policy was on the side streets 
(for snow and ice removal), but the truth of the matter was most everyone needed to drive on the 
main roads. Beaumont advised on Pinewood (where he lives) sometimes they plow it and 
sometimes they don’t and he felt their (city) ultimate responsibility was to make sure the main 
roads were done so he didn’t really have a problem with whatever the current policy was on the 
side streets. 
 Mayor Bill Robertson advised he wanted to remind everyone about the Chamber Dinner on 
February 3rd, as he was given an incorrect date of February 4th previously. He advised the city 
would pickup the cost for Council Members to attend and let the administration know if they were 
interested. 

 

Motion to Allow Council Members to Purchase Healthcare Insurance Through 

the City of Rittman with 100% of the Premium Paid by the Council Member at No Cost 

to the City. Boggs advised the motion would allow them to add it to the policy right away 
should there be any interest. He indicated if Council Members didn’t wish to participate they 
might be asked to sign a waiver. Boggs advised it was his opinion once such a motion would be 
made that it would carryover for future Council Members to participate if they wish.  

Workman so moved, upon roll call; Beaumont-Yes, Lapehn-Yes, Workman-Yes, 
Hanlon-Yes, Russell-Abstain, Carey-Yes and motion carried. 

 

Motion to Go Into Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing the Sale of 

Property and Invite the Mayor, the City Manager, the Finance Director and the Law 

Director- 7:24 p.m. Carey so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

Motion to Come Out of Executive Session – 7:45 p.m. Russell so moved, all Yeas on 
roll call and motion carried.  
 



a. Approval of Vouchers 54350 thru 54362 & 54366 thru 54524 Including 

Then and Now Certificates Questions were asked regarding #’s 54350, 54409, 54416, 54504, 
54505, 54506, 54507, 54508 and 54516. Carey moved to approve, all Yeas on roll call and motion 

carried. 

 

Adjourn: - 7:50 p.m.  
Workman so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

________________________________

Mayor 

 

 

__ ______________________  

Clerk of Council 
 
   

 


